ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 22, 2011
3:04 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Wes Keller, Chair
Representative Alan Dick, Vice Chair
Representati ve Bob Herron
Representative Paul Seaton
Representative Beth Kerttul a
Representative Bob M1l er

VEVBERS ABSENT
Representative Charisse MIlett
COW TTEE CALENDAR

PRESENTATI ON:  THE POTENTI AL THREAT TO ALASKANS FROM JAPAN S
RADI ATl ON

- HEARD
PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON
No previous action to record
W TNESS REGQ STER

JOE MCLAUGHLI N, MD, MPH, Chief and State Epidem ol ogi st

Section of Epidem ol ogy

Di vision of Public Health

Department of Health and Social Services (DHSS)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Conducted a presentation and answered
guestions on the potential threat to Alaskans from Japan's
radi ation.

KRI STIN RYAN, Director

D vision of Environnmental Health

Depart ment of Environnmental Conservation (DEC)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions during the
presentation of the potential threat to Al askans from Japan's
radi ation.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -1- March 22, 2011



DR. BERNARD JILLY, Director

Public Health Laboratories

Di vision of Public Health

Department of Health and Social Services

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions during the
presentation of the potential threat to Al askans from Japan's
radi ati on.

CHRI' S LABORDE, Energency Program Manager

Di vi sion of Public Health

Department of Health and Soci al Services

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions during the
presentation of the potential threat to Al askans from Japan's
radi ati on.

BRYAN FI SHER, Operati ons Manager

Di vi si on of Honel and Security/ Emergency Managenent

Departnment of Mlitary & Veterans’ Affairs (DWA)

Ft. Richardson, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the presentation of the
potential threat to Al askans from Japan's radi ation.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

3:04:53 PM

CHAIR WES KELLER called the House Health and Social Services
St andi ng Committee neet i ng to or der at 3:04 p. m
Representatives Keller, MIller, D ck, and Seaton were present at
the call to order. Representatives Kerttula and Herron arrived
as the nmeeting was in progress.

3:05:35 PM

CHAI R KELLER refl ected on the nuclear crisis in Japan.

Presentation: The Potential Threat to Al askans from Japan's
Radi ati on

3:07:53 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 2- March 22, 2011



CHAI R KELLER announced that the only order of business would be
a presentation on the potential threat to Al askans from Japan's
radi ation.

3:08:13 PM

JOE MCLAUGHLIN, MD, MPH, Chief and State Epidem ol ogi st, Section
of Epidem ol ogy, Division of Public Health, Departnment of Health
and Soci al Services (DHSS), presented a brief PowerPoint
entitled "The Japanese Nuclear Crisis: VWhat it Means for
Al aska" [Included in nmenbers' packets] and directed attention to
slide 1, "Inplications for Al aska." He stated the three main
points to renenber: there is no imediate or anticipated threat
for harnful Ilevels of radiation to reach Alaska; Alaska's
seafood is wunlikely to be affected; this is an inportant
rem nder that all Al askans should assenble a hone energency kit
and a famly response pl an.

DR. MCLAUGHLI N noved on to slide 2, "Public Health Response to a
Radi ati on Energency," and said that sonme of the primary duties
of the Division of Public Health were to inform the public and
health care providers with a situational update and to supply
the tools necessary to reduce the risk of radiation exposure

He spoke of the duty to protect the public from radiation
exposure with shelter, evacuation recomendations, distribution
of radiation nedications, and restriction of consunption of
contam nated food. He declared a responsibility to decrease the
psychol ogi cal effects of radiation exposure and to perform a
long termfollow up for exposed persons.

3:10: 30 PM

DR. MCLAUGHLIN  directed attention to slide 3, " DHSS
Communi cation Response,"” and shared that DHSS had responded to
media requests, and issued press releases, nessages, and an
Epi dem ol ogy Bul |l etin. He declared that the principal nessages
were: no anticipated threat to the health of Al askans; Al askans
should not be taking potassium iodide; nonitoring and
communi cation was ongoing with local and state partners; and,
all Al askans shoul d be prepared for emergencies.

3:11: 39 PM
DR. MCLAUGHLI N, addressing slide 4, "Wat can Al askans do to be
prepared for an energency?" stated that a hone energency supply

kit, a vehicle energency supply kit, a famly response plan, and
practice of the plan were all necessary.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 3- March 22, 2011



3:12: 01 PM

DR. MCLAUGHLIN directed attention to slide 5, "Al aska Radiation
Monitoring” and declared that Alaska's nonitoring stations
continued to show normal background |evels of radiation. He
listed the five nonitoring stations, Anchorage, Fairbanks,
Juneau, Dutch Harbor, and None. He shared that the DHSS hone
page had nore avail abl e dat a.

3:13: 01 PM

DR. MCLAUGHLIN, referencing slide 6, "Food Supply," shared that
the food supply was closely nonitored with increased targeted
sanpling at the border. He noted that |ess than 4 percent of
US. inported food canme from Japan. He reported that current
nodel s indicated that U S. fishing waters woul d remain safe.

3:13:46 PM

DR. MCLAUGHLI N anal yzed slide 7, a table on Exposure (rem wth
Notes and Effects, and pointed to the various exposure anounts

that individuals experienced on a regular basis. He conpared
that the maxinmum radiation reported at the main gate of the
Fukushi ma Daiichi power plant on March 15 was still less than
exposure anounts for acute health effects. He detailed sone of

the effects of higher exposure.
3:15:48 PM

DR. MCLAUGHLIN sunmarized slide 8, "Availability of Radiation
Medi cations,” and stated that radiation nedications were
included in the Strategic National Stockpile, but that the
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) would only
deploy these if there was a "credible threat." He stated that
"no public health risks are expected from this disaster in the
United States.”

3:16: 57 PM

DR. MCLAUGHLIN reviewed slide 9, "Summary," and reiterated that
there was no anticipated threat of harnful radiation exposure to
Al askans at this time;, Al aska's seafood was unlikely to be
affected; and, all Al askans should be prepared for disasters.
He stated that nore information was available on the DHSS
websi te.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -4- March 22, 2011



3:17:23 PM

REPRESENTATI VE M LLER asked for a conversion of mllisieverts to
rads or rens.

DR. MCLAUGHLIN replied that one sievert was equal to one hundred

rem which was also equal to one thousand mllisieverts or one
mllion mcrosieverts.
3:18: 36 PM

REPRESENTATI VE M LLER, reflecting that radiation exposure on
March 15 was 40 rem at the Fukushima Daiichi power plant and
0. 00008 remin Tokyo, asked about the wind direction that day.

3:18: 57 PM
DR. MCLAUGHLI N replied that he did not know.
3:19: 21 PM

REPRESENTATI VE M LLER asked, as the |evel of catastrophe was
related to wind and altitude, what altitude was attained by the
radi ati on in the Fukushi ma Daiichi power plant disaster.

3:19:30 PM

DR. MCLAUGHLIN stated that the Environnental Protection Agency
(EPA) clarified the difference between the nuclear disasters in
Japan and Chernobyl. He detailed that Chernobyl had included "a
massive explosion and a fire that raged for 10 days." He
expl ained that the heat pushed the radioactive mterial high
into the jet stream He stressed that this was not the case in
Japan.

3:20: 59 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON, clarifying that the conversion from
mllisievert to remonly entailed noving a decinmal point, asked
if the radioactive neasurenment was for absolute exposure or for
time duration.

3:21:49 PM

DR. MCLAUGHLI N expl ai ned that each of the exposure neasurenents
on the graph differed.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 5- March 22, 2011



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked how the exposure of 5-50 rem was
nmeasur ed.

DR. MCLAUGHLIN replied that this would be an acute exposure
event, and woul d occur over a very short period of tine.

3:23:20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked about the tinme of exposure at the
mai n gate of the power plant.

DR. MCLAUGHLI N replied that the nmeasurenent was per hour.
3:23:40 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DI CK asked if a flight to Europe and a chest x-
ray had conparabl e exposure anounts.

3:24:11 PM

DR. MCLAUGHLIN said that the radiation fromone flight was quite
a bit less than a chest x-ray.

3:24:46 PM

REPRESENTATI VE M LLER asked about the potency and shelf |ife of
the potassiumiodide in the strategic stockpile.

3:24: 58 PM

DR. MCLAUGHLIN replied that the shelf life was an average of
seven years and its potency was for a daily dosage of 130 nig.

REPRESENTATI VE M LLER questioned whether the optimal ingestion
woul d be prior to exposure to radiation.

DR. MCLAUGHLIN replied that the optinmal w ndow for ingestion was
between 2 hours prior and 4 hours after exposure. He stated
that the protective efficacy dimnished after 4 hours. He noted
t hat potassium iodide protected the thyroid gland from exposure
to radioactive iodine, whereas other nedications prevented
absorption of radiation.

3:26:51 PM

REPRESENTATI VE M LLER asked if cesium had been detected in the
air near the Fukushima Daiichi power plant.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 6- March 22, 2011



DR. MCLAUGHLI N agr eed.
3:27: 05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON asked about the danger to any U S. food
suppl i es outside the fishing waters.

3:27:57 PM

KRI STIN RYAN, Director, Division of Environnental Heal t h,
Depart ment of Environnmental Conservation (DEC), replied that DEC
was working closely with the Food and Drug Adm nistration (FDA)
to nonitor food from Japan. She stated that a random sanpling
program al ready existed at the ports of entry.

3:28: 35 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON asked if there was concern for the food
supply closer to the reactor in Japan.

M5. RYAN replied that Japan was nonitoring mlk near the nuclear
facilities, and advising people not to consune anything wth
el evated | evel s of radiation.

3:29:50 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked if this would have a long term
effect on mari ne manmal s.

3:30: 24 PM
DR. BERNARD  JILLY, Di rector, Publi c Health Laboratori es,

Division of Public Health, Departnent of Health and Soci al
Services, said that accunulation of radioactivity depended on

the half life of the material. He said the half life of iodine
was eight hours, whereas the half |ife of cesium was nore than
30 years. He allowed that there was a theoretical possibility
of "sonme build-up in sonme marine mammals." He pointed to the

dilution factor of the ocean as a factor for Kkeeping the
probability very | ow.

3:32: 06 PM

REPRESENTATI VE M LLER asked where the cesiumwas com ng from

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -7- March 22, 2011



DR. MCLAUGHLI N explained that fission occurred when radioactive
urani um or plutonium was used in a nuclear power plant. Thi s
process caused the atom to split into a heavier and |ighter
nol ecul e, iodine 131 and cesi um

3:33:34 PM

CHAI R KELLER asked where Al aska nedication was stockpiled and
what was the procedure for distribution.

3:33: 57 PM

CHRI' S LABORDE, Energency Program Manager, Division of Public
Health, Departnment of Health and Social Services, said that
there was an Al aska strategic national stockpile plan to receive
and distribute any nedical counterneasures, which was in
conjunction wth CDC She pointed out that upon any credible
threat, Al aska would receive the stockpile of nedications within
12 hours. The plan would allow the stockpile to be warehoused
in Alaska, and then distributed to all the health care
facilities in Al aska. She nentioned that each health care
facility also had a distribution plan for its popul ati on base.

3:35:46 PM

M5. LABORDE, in response to Chair Keller, said that it was not
known where the stockpile was kept, or how nuch was in the
st ockpi | e. She relayed that it was brought into Anchorage by a
normal transport process, unless an energency denanded support
fromthe Coast Guard or the National Guard.

REPRESENTATI VE M LLER, noting that the Aleutian Islands could be
in the wind pattern from Japan, commented on the difficulty for
quick transport to a renote | ocation.

3:36: 56 PM

CHAI R KELLER asked for npore infornmation about the radiation
noni t ori ng equi pnent.

3:37: 20 PM
DR JILLY, in response to Chair Keller, confirmed that fixed
nmonitors were in Juneau, Anchorage, and Fairbanks, and that

portabl e devices were in Nonme, Dutch Harbor, and a second device
in Juneau. He nmentioned that these units were on loan from the

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 8- March 22, 2011



Environnental Protection Agency (EPA) and were part of a program
for radi ol ogi cal issues.

3:38:51 PM

REPRESENTATI VE M LLER asked about the distinction between the
types of radiation nonitoring, and if there were other types of
radi ati on for concern.

3:39:11 PM

DR, JILLY, in response, established that there were three types
of radiation: al pha, beta, and gammma. He said that al pha
radiation was the nucleus of the atom and, as it had little
penetration capability, could be stopped with a sheet of paper
He noted that the only true concern would be for internal
i ngesti on. He declared that beta radiation, free electrons
ejected fromthe atom had different energy |evels which did not
directly correlate into rem He confirmed that gamma radiation
was pure energy simlar to light or x-ray energy. Gamma had a
capacity for deep penetration. He explained that the nonitoring
devi ces neasured beta and gamma radiation. He nentioned that
the devices contained a filter which captured the radiation, and
allowed for in depth analysis of alpha, beta, and ganma to
determ ne the source of the radiation.

3:41: 26 PM

REPRESENTATI VE M LLER asked for the worst case scenario, as he
ascertained a response tine of at |east five days.

3:42:34 PM

DR. MCLAUGHLI N di scussed a worst case scenario for a Chernobyl -
type event in Japan. He pointed out a difference between the
two power plants, as the Japanese power plant had six inch
stainless steel protective casings and a layer of concrete
around the reactor, which Chernobyl did not have. He reported
that the tinme for a radiation plunme to reach Al aska woul d depend
on the altitude of that plume, and the wnd strength and
direction. He detailed that there would be an i Mmedi ate request
to the strategic stockpile, even before any nonitoring data was
recei ved. He stated that there would be a plan for rapid
distribution of the nedications and for energency shelter or
evacuat i on. He stressed that this would all be initiated prior
to any nonitoring data from the five EPA stations. He reported
that the data was received and tracked on a real tinme basis.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -9- March 22, 2011



3:45: 28 PM
MS. LABORDE added that work was coordi nated wi th CDC
3:46: 18 PM

CHAI R KELLER asked for any projected effect on the nations close
to Japan.

3:46: 52 PM

BRYAN  FI SHER, Qper ati ons Manager , Division of Honel and
Security/ Energency Managenent , Depart nent of Mlitary &
Veterans’ Affairs (DWA), in response to Chair Keller, said that
the prevailing winds were blowing toward the east and northeast
and that there was no specific information on effects to other
countri es. He added that there were other nonitoring sources
out si de Al aska, especially within Japan. He shared that EPA had
stated that it would be "a couple of days before anything nade
its way to landfall in Alaska.” He reflected that establishnment
of a wunified command between DHSS, DWA, and Departnent of
Environnental Conservation (DEC) would be instituted if there
was a threat to Al aska. He stated that the prinmary objectives
woul d be to get the nessage out for sheltering and evacuation to
the public and the comunities in the direct path. He shared
that this teleconference system for discussion and technical
gui dance had just been inplenented during the tsunam threat.

3:49: 24 PM

CHAIR KELLER reflected that this emergency had provided the
opportunity for a drill to evaluate the systens.

3:50: 01 PM

ADJ QURNIVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Health and Social Services Standing Conmittee neeting was
adj ourned at 3:50 p. m

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 10- March 22, 2011



